
 
 

SCRUTINY : SOCIAL SERVICES 
 

3.00 pm TUESDAY, 16TH MARCH, 2021 
 

REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

A Pre-Meeting will take place prior to this Meeting and a separate invitation will 
be sent from Scrutiny Support Officers to Committee Members only  

 
 

Please note that today’s Meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet 
 

All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to being 
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings being used as outlined 

above. 

 

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 

member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 
725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 

 
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 

found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 
 

 
AGENDA 

 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board Annual 
Report 2019/20  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services 
 

5 - 12 

4. Adult Services and Children’s Services Carers 
Strategy  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services 
 

13 - 20 

5. Social Services Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan Update  

 

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Social 
Services 
 

21 - 26 

6. Forward Work Programme 2020/21   

 To consider the attached report 
 

27 - 38 

7. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions  

 

8. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

9. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair  
 
 
 

 



  
 
COMPOSITION: 

 
Councillors:  W R Smith (Chair) 
                     S Jago (Vice-Chair) 

  
 Councillors: G Richards, D Sammon and I Thomas 

 
Co-optees: I Cathrew 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board Annual 
Report 2019/20 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to share with Scrutiny Committee the Annual Report for 

2019/20 for the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Scrutiny Committee notes and endorses the Annual Report for 2019/20. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board has a statutory responsibility to 

publish an Annual Report on 31st July each year, to demonstrate its effectiveness in 
exercising its functions in the preceding financial year.  

 
3.2 The purpose of the Annual Report is twofold; it is a tool of accountability and a tool 

for evaluation.  Accountability has three components: 
 

 accountability to the public; 

 accountability to the statutory partner agencies of the Board; and 

 accountability to the inspectorate bodies. 
 
 

Date Written 9th February 2021 

Report Author Lisa Curtis-Jones 

Service Area Social Services 

Committee Date 16th March 2021 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 
3.3 The Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board is a statutory partnership made up of 

the agencies that are responsible for safeguarding children and adults at risk in Cwm 
Taf.  The aim of the Board is to ensure that people of all ages are protected from 
abuse, neglect or other kinds of harm.  This also involves preventing abuse, neglect 
or other kinds of harm from happening.  

 
3.4 The work of the Board is delivered via a sub-group structure, which aims to support 

multi-agency safeguarding in Cwm Taf.  The Lead Partner (Rhondda Cynon Taf 
County Borough Council) employs the staff of the Board’s Business Unit and holds 
the Board’s budget, to which the statutory partner agencies contribute.   

 
3.5 The two key safeguarding objectives of protection and prevention underpin the work 

of the Board and inform the priorities each year. 
 
3.6 The Cwm Taf Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) sits within the structure of the 

Board to enhance safeguarding practice, with agencies working together in one 
place to receive all safeguarding referrals and share relevant agency information to 
make collaborative decisions.  

 
3.7 As you are aware in June 2018, the Welsh Government announced that from 

1st April 2019, Cwm Taf University Health Board would be responsible for healthcare 
services in the Bridgend County Borough Council area.  This meant that 
accompanying partnership structures in the delivery of social services across the 
Western Bay region joined with Cwm Taf, with the creation of a new Regional 
Safeguarding Board for the Cwm Taf Morgannwg area. 

 
3.8 The first Annual Plan for the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board was 

published on 30th April 2019 and the progress and outcomes of this were to be 
published in July 2020.  Due to COVID some of these deadlines moved to later in the 
year.  

 

4.0 KEY PRIORITIES 2019/20 
 
4.1 In addition to carrying out the core statutory functions the Cwm Taf Morgannwg 

Safeguarding Board also agreed a range of priorities for the following year.  These 
were specific areas that would enhance and support the Board to achieve its 
objectives and were as follows: 

 

 Safeguard children, young people and adults at risk from the impact of Domestic 
Abuse. 

 Improve the way in which we communicate, engage and promote participation 
with our communities and partner agencies. 

 Ensure that the transition to the new regional footprint for safeguarding is 
managed effectively. 

 
 
 
 

Page 6



5.0 SUMMARY OF KEY ACHIEVEMENTS FOR 2019/20 
 
5.1 The Board published an Annual Plan on 31st March 2019, setting out the priorities for 

safeguarding children, young people and adults in 2019/20.  A summary of some of 
the key achievements included in the report is provided below (a full copy is 
available via the background papers link). 

 
Strategic Priority 1: Safeguard children, young people and adults at risk from the 
impact of domestic abuse 
 
5.2 In our Annual Plan for 2019/20, we explained that all forms of domestic abuse have 

a profound effect on those who experience it.  The impact that domestic abuse can 
have on children and young people is devastating and can lead to problems in 
adulthood and have a detrimental impact on their mental health and wellbeing.  This 
is a similar case for older people, but often the domestic abuse may not be as visible 
or they may not be aware of the support that is available to them.  Some people will 
be more vulnerable to domestic abuse, such as disabled people who may not have 
the ability to defend themselves and/or be less able to access support. 

 
5.3 Close collaboration between the VAWDASV Steering Group and the Cwm Taf 

Morgannwg Safeguarding Board has meant a wider reach for raising awareness 
activities in the region.  Awareness raising and training amongst the public, staff, 
care providers and the third sector was undertaken to increase the understanding of 
the early indicators of domestic abuse and how to respond to prevent the escalation 
of risk and incidents.  In November and December 2019, four workshops in relation 
to Coercive Controlling Behaviour were provided to non-specialist partner agencies.  
164 professionals attended the workshops which were held in order to raise 
awareness of coercive controlling behaviour and contribute to an improved response 
to victims across a range of non-specialist agencies.  The workshops were led by the 
RCTCBC Oasis Centre in partnership with Safer Merthyr Tydfil, the Cwm Taf 
Morgannwg Safeguarding Board Business Unit and the RCT social housing partner, 
Trivallis.  Attendees felt that following the sessions they were more aware of 
Coercive Control and knew which signs to look out for and could therefore advise 
their teams of the same to make them more confident in this area when working on 
the front line and to be able to refer appropriately. 

 
5.4 Funding from the Welsh Government Training Grant for Safeguarding Board was 

used to deliver face-to-face training with school staff on VAWDASV Level 1 to 
ensure compliance with WG legislation.  These courses acted as a catalyst for 
schools to send a representative who has in turn encouraged completion amongst 
their staff of the e-learning module or physical paper module.  This work has carried 
on into 2020-21 via virtual means.  During Safeguarding Week, VAWDASV Group 1 
training was also delivered to schools, which was promoted as part of the wider 
Safeguarding week publicity with positive feedback received from all schools spoken 
to. 

 
5.5 Digital platforms have been utilised to raise awareness amongst professionals and 

the public on how to recognise and respond to domestic abuse involving children 
and adults. 

 

Page 7



5.6 The University and Further Education Colleges were invited to participate in the 
Board’s Training and Communications sub-groups to support the work of the Board 
in raising awareness of the need to safeguard people from domestic abuse. 

 
5.7 A ‘Tackling Domestic Abuse’ event was held during Safeguarding Week 2019.  103 

professionals from a wide range of agencies throughout Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
attended this event in Merthyr Tydfil.  The line-up included a series of presentations 
from various agencies, a performance from ‘Spectacle Theatre Company’ and a 
number of information stands.  This was a successful event, with feedback indicating 
that events such as this one, themed around specific topics, would be something 
which professionals would welcome on a more regular basis.  The evaluation of the 
event showed that those who attended thought it was a well organised, informative 
event with a great array of services present and an excellent opportunity to network 
and to identify how services can work more closely with each other. 

 
5.8 Whilst planning for Safeguarding Week and its activity, a theme emerged of 

Adolescent to Parent Violence.  Whilst the planning group wanted a more generic 
theme for the week, it was agreed that this was a relevant issue to pursue.  As a 
result of this discussion, Merthyr Tydfil Borough Wide Youth Forum (MTBWYF) 
offered to develop a DVD around this topic, supported by the VAWDASV Steering 
Group and CTM Safeguarding Board. 

 
5.9 Specific examples of work carried out to protect and support children and adults who 

have been affected by Domestic Abuse are outlined on pages 14 and 15.  
 
Strategic Priority 2: Improve the way in which we communicate, engage and promote 
participation with our communities and partner agencies. 
 
5.10 In our Annual Plan for 2019/20 we explained that we needed to raise awareness with 

the public and professionals of the need to protect and prevent children, young 
people and adults from becoming at risk of abuse, neglect and other forms of harm, 
and provide information about how this can be achieved.  We also wanted to provide 
children, young people and adults with an opportunity to participate in our work, 
increasing the amount of engagement with the public, improving links with local 
forums and activity groups to ensure the voices of the people we support are 
thoroughly embedded into our work.  We also want to ensure that all feedback 
provided as a result of these activities is recorded and evaluated. 

 
5.11 A number of improvements were identified that needed to be done in 2019/20 to 

improve how we share information and raise awareness around safeguarding issues 
with the public: 

 

 A new website – this was launched in November 2019. 

 New facebook account was launched August 2019. 

 Various events took place to promote awareness raising and engagement around 
the subject of safeguarding – details of which are on page 20.  

 
 
 

Page 8



Strategic Priority 3: Ensure that the transition to the new regional footprint for 
safeguarding is managed effectively 
 
5.12 From 1st April 2019, the Board became responsible for safeguarding in Rhondda 

Cynon Taf, Bridgend and Merthyr Tydfil.  The process of transition required effective 
planning and management to ensure that the Board and its partner agencies were 
able to continue to carry out core safeguarding functions during the time of change. 

 
Governance 
 
5.13 New Terms of Reference for the Board was agreed, along with Board membership 

and role profiles.  The Director of Social Services for Bridgend became a Co-Chair of 
the Board and chairing and membership arrangements for the Board sub-groups 
were reviewed to reflect the new regional footprint.  The Board’s Business Unit took 
on responsibility for the new regional Board within existing resources and this 
arrangement will continue to be reviewed. 

 
Protocols and Procedures 
 
5.14 The Protocols and Procedures sub-group, chaired by the local authority in Merthyr 

Tydfil, carried out a significant piece of work to oversee the development of policies 
moving from Cwm Taf to Cwm Taf Morgannwg. 

 
Training, Learning and Communications 
 
5.15 The Terms of Reference and membership of the Board’s Training and Learning 

Group were reviewed to reflect the new regional footprint and the chairing 
arrangements became the responsibility of the local authority in Bridgend.  The local 
authority Training Departments worked together to share good practice and identify 
common themes and demands. 

 
Child and Adult Practice Reviews 
 
5.16 The existing Child and Adult Review Groups were joined to create a new Joint 

Review Group, chaired by the local authority in Bridgend.  A single process is now in 
place for referrals for Practice Reviews and the co-ordination of Panels and Reviews, 
supported by a central pool of independent chairs and reviewers. 

 
Quality Assurance and Performance 
 
5.17 The terms of reference and membership of the Quality Assurance groups for adults 

and children were reviewed, with chairing arrangements remaining with RCT 
Council.  A consistent approach to data reporting and audit has been developed and 
will undergo further improvement in 2020/2021. 

 
Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hubs 
 
5.18 Further links were established between the Cwm Taf and Bridgend MASHs and 

identified opportunities to share good practice, particularly in the areas of information 
sharing and IT safeguarding platforms, that will continue to develop in 2020/21.  In 

Page 9



addition, the Cwm Taf and Bridgend MASH contributed to an evaluation of MASH 
across Wales.  Multi-Agency work within Bridgend’s MASH continues to be 
productive and the Annual MASH report is rich in performance data and quality 
information from partner agencies with regard to their experience of working in 
MASH. 

 

6.0 CHALLENGES FOR 2020 
 
6.1 This report would usually have been presented to Scrutiny last year about 

September/October 2020 reviewing the work of the Board from 2019/20.  However 
due to the challenges of the COVID-19 pandemic the timescales for presenting this 
report were delayed. 

 
6.2 The COVID-19 pandemic and subsequent lockdown had a huge impact on the work 

of the Board partner agencies during the last few weeks of the year. This 
unprecedented crisis came not long after the devastating floods of February 2020 
when so many communities were affected and this put additional pressures on 
services.  However, our partner agencies’ statutory duties to safeguard children and 
adults at risk continued to be a priority across the region.  Throughout the year, 
partner agencies reported to the Board on the key challenges they were faced with, 
including: 
 

 The boundary change and managing the differing processes, practice and 
guidance in relation to safeguarding across Board partner agencies. 

 Managing demand, which has been an ongoing key theme for partner agencies 
and capacity is often at maximum levels. 

 The volume of increasingly complex cases being referred in to Children’s 
Services.  In turn, trying to identify suitable foster and residential placements for 
children and young people presenting with complex needs. 

 Accessing Continuing Health Care packages for our most complex and 
vulnerable children and young people. 

 The need to develop an understanding of how staff training and the production of 
policies/protocols change and improve practice. 

 The rollout of VAWDASV training to ensure compliance with Welsh Government 
regulations and the need to consider alternative approaches.  For example, in 
RCT this involved teams going out into schools to train Catering staff; face-to-
face courses set up within schools; booklets shared electronically to all schools 
with spreadsheet returns; and a focus on setting up whole school staff teams 
onto RCT Source to undertake the training. 

 Reviewing how missing persons are managed, particularly those who go missing 
from a care setting.  The local policing area has a number of examples where 
safeguarding considerations have had to be made as a result of placement of 
children from other authority areas.  Problems have been encountered due to a 
lack of information sharing between authorities which has created a risk to that 
individual and others in the home. 

 
 
 

Page 10



 The increase in suicide and attempted suicides within the regional area.  In order 
to focus on prevention, colleagues in South Wales Police have needed to look at 
trends and patterns taking an analytical approach.  A challenge has been in 
identifying vulnerable associates who have been adversely affected by these 
tragic incidents.  Work is ongoing to bring partners together to agree a process 
and structures to facilitate this. 

 

7.0 NEXT STEPS 
 
7.1 The Annual Report has been approved by the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding 

Board and shared with the Welsh Government and the National Independent 
Safeguarding Board. 

 
7.2 A copy of the report has been published on the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding 

Board website. 
 
7.3 Safeguarding Children, Young People and Adults remains our priority in Cwm Taf 

Morgannwg.  We will continue to address the challenges above and will update our 
aims and priorities moving forward to meet these challenges. 

 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1  The contents of this report relate to the following Wellbeing Objectives: 
 

 Best Start to Life 
Children and young people get the best start to life and are equipped with the 
skills they need to be successful learners and confident individuals. 

 

 Living Well 
People are empowered to live independently within their communities, where 
they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. 

 
 

 
LISA CURTIS-JONES  
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 
 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES   
                            CABINET MEMBER FOR 

SOCIAL SERVICES  
 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Cwm Taf Safeguarding 
Board Annual Report 

2019/20 

2020  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 
 
 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Adult Services and Children’s Services Carers 
Strategy 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The report outlines the activities undertaken in support of carers within Adult 

Services and Children’s Services.  It outlines our objectives and intended activities 
moving forward and the links to the Regional Carers Strategy. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  Scrutiny Committee is asked to receive this report and to raise questions and 

challenge leading to improvement.   
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 This report outlines the activities undertaken in support of carers within Adult 

Services and Children’s Services.  
 
3.2 Unpaid carers play an essential role in supporting people in the community as part of 

the wider health and social care sector.  The support they provide is varied and a 
number of them provide support to people with highly complex needs. 

 
3.3 It must also be recognised that without the support of unpaid carers there would be a 

significant increase in the demand for statutory social care services. 
 
3.4 Young carers are children and young people under 18 who provide regular and on-

going care and emotional support to a family member who is physically or mentally 
ill, disabled, or misuses substances.  The provision for Merthyr Young Carers is 

Date Written February 2021 

Report Author Rachel Gray / Taryn Stephens 

Service Area Adult Social Care / Children’s Services 

Committee Date 16th March 2021 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



located within Children’s Services Early Intervention and Prevention component of its 
service strategy. 

 
3.5 As part of the Regional Work programme of the Cwm Taf Social Services and 

Wellbeing Partnership Board, a new Cwm Taf Carers Strategy was developed in 
2016 to replace the separate plans of partner organisations.  Working with partners 
across Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taf and including carers themselves, the 
Cwm Taf Carers Strategy 2016-2019 covers carers of all ages.  

 

3.6 The following principles have been used by the Cwm Taf Carers Partnership Group 
to inform its work: 

 We will promote and support effective communication across the partnership; 

 We will make sure that users of our services, particularly carers, are able to 
influence the work of the partnership;  

 We will focus on what matters to the people and communities of Cwm Taf; 

 We will promote and develop solutions towards preventing problems occurring or 
getting worse for people in Cwm Taf;  

 We will promote and support collaboration and integration;  

 We will make sure that we strike a balance between short term needs and longer 
term goals;    

 We will listen to, understand and respect individual organisational views and the 
views of other parties; 

 We will conduct business with transparency and openness; and 

 We will fully utilise the wide range of skills, knowledge and experience which are 
available to the Group. 

 
3.7 The strategy is currently under review and now includes Bridgend as part of our new 

regional footprint.  
 

3.8 The Cwm Taf Morgannwg steering group have met several times within 2019/20 to 
draft an updated version of the carers’ strategy.  Unfortunately, due to COVID-19 
restrictions and Government guidance impacting on the group’s ability to meet, this 
work remains outstanding. 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE 
 

Adults Services 
 
4.1 Within Merthyr Tydfil we did not have a carers officer in place to support carers 

within Adult Services.  It was recognised that there was a need to improve our offer 
to carers and as such, a carers officer was recruited in August 2020. 

 
4.2 Throughout 2019/20, partners in the region built upon the success of the previous 

year and continued to work collaboratively together and with other stakeholders in 
improving recognition of carers and providing appropriate information and support.  

 
4.3  Key areas of work that were undertaken were: 
 

 Worked with partners to deliver the annual Action Plan. 

Page 14



 Continued work with the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Partnership Group to oversee 
implementation of the Strategy, reporting to the SSWB Partnership Board.  

 Provided Carer Aware training (both via e-learning and face to face) to further 
expand the knowledge of both Carers Champions and staff throughout the Cwm 
Taf region. 

 
4.4 Worked with Third sector partnership within Merthyr Tydfil to deliver: 
 

 Primary Care Cluster GPSO’s who engaged, signposted, offered advice and 
worked with patients to influence cultural and behavioural change for service 
users within a Primary Care setting. 

 VAMT community coordinators provided information, advice and signposting to 
local community groups, activities and services.  

 Established a Merthyr Tydfil Dementia Support group. 

 Continued to deliver the Merthyr and the Valleys Mind Carers STAR Project. 

 Funding was secured by Citizens Advice Bureau to create the CAB for Carers 
project. 

 Funding secured by Cancer Aid Merthyr Tydfil to create their project Caring for 
Cancer Carers. 

 
4.5  The Covid pandemic has had a significant impact on carers as there has been a 

reduction in the availability of a number of services that support carers in their role 
such as day services and access to respite in care home settings. 

 
Young Carers 

 
4.6 The Young Carers Service within Merthyr Tydfil has been provided by Barnardos 

since 1997.  The service operates an open referral system, accepting referrals from 
young carers themselves, their families and professionals.  

 
4.7 During 2019/20 18 new young carers assessments were undertaken, all of which led 

to a support plan.  A further 197 young carers support plans were reviewed within 
the set timescales. 

 
4.8 Carers well-being is central to the measures of the Young Carers service; overall 

within the year 85% of young carers who have attended the programme have 
reported an improvement in their wellbeing.  80% of families engaged with the 
service report an improvement in their families’ resilience. 
 

4.9 Key areas of work that were undertaken included: 
 

 Through working with the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Carers Partnership Group we 
had secured continued funding of £4,100 for residential breaks for young carers 
to take place during 2019/20.  

 The Cwm Taf Morgannwg Carers Partnership Group also supported the provision 
of cooking sessions for young carers. 

 The Young Carer’s Choir continued to meet on a weekly basis.  During 2019/20 
their performances include the Welsh festival at Pontypridd, the Child Looked 
After Celebration Event and the 20th Celebration of the Taith Partnerhship hosted 

Page 15



by Mark Drakeford.  During the six-week school holiday period Glam Choir 
provided an excellent opportunity for 11 young carers to attend a two week 
summer camp. 

 Children’s Services and Barnardos in conjunction had secured funding for music 
activities for young carers and young mothers.  The Alaw project has been 
attended by 12 female young carers aged between 14 and 18 years old.  
Sessions to date have offered opportunities for participants to song write and 
learning to play musical instruments. 

 Young carers are represented at the Merthyr Borough Youth Forum.  Young 
carers also attended the Youth Parliament Event at the Liberty Stadium in 
Swansea where they were involved in a focus group looking at developing life 
skills in the curriculum.  Seven young carers were part of the community 
ambassador programme and attended a visit to the Children’s Commissioners’ 
Office in Swansea. 

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 The pandemic continues to place additional pressures on unpaid carers as whilst 

services such as day services have re-opened, they are at a much reduced level to 
enable social distancing.  Planned respite services in care home settings are 
unavailable due to the restrictions on admissions to care homes.  

 
5.2 We have been working to provide support in alternative ways such as direct 

payments and more sitting services in the person’s home.  However, we are now 
seeing an increase in the number of unpaid carers who are saying that they are in 
crisis and unable to continue in their caring role. 

 
5.3  We recognise the need to support carers and in order to do this we have needed to 

seek alternative ways of engaging with them to develop and evaluate new services 
and the following are now in place: 

 

 A Carers Officer to develop and understand what carers needs currently are.  

 Mechanism for contacting carers to provide support through COVID. 

 Establishment of a social media group for carers in Merthyr Tydfil to share up to 
date information from the Local Authority and our third sector partners.  

 Funding acquired to commission ‘Meaningful Care Matters’ workshops and online 
resource membership. 

 Review of the current carers assessment to identify what needs to change for it to 
be more carer friendly. 

 Review and development of the regional carers strategy (ongoing).  

 Worked with our WCCIS team to identify how many carers have had carers 
assessments undertaken.  

 Redeveloping our Local Authority website landing page to have more detailed 
information for carers. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



Young Carers 
 
5.4 During 2020/21 the COVID 19 pandemic and subsequent restrictions have placed 

significant pressures on our young carers.  The Young Carers Service worked 
quickly to adapt their ways of working to ensure that we remained a consistent 
support for our young carers.  This has led to increased virtual working and outdoor 
sessions during the pandemic period. 

 
5.5 During the first three quarters of 2019/20 118 young carers engaged with the Young 

Carers Service.  11 new young carers assessments were undertaken, all of which 
led to a support plan.  A further 152 young carers support plans were reviewed within 
the set timescales. 

 
5.6 Carers well-being is central to the measures of the Young Carers service; overall 

within the year 61% of young carers who have attended the programme have 
reported an improvement in their wellbeing.  The current restrictions and changes in 
service delivery are considered to be fundamental components as to why this 
measure is lower than previous years.  It is important to note that over the three 
quarters this measure has increased (Q1 27%, Q2 84% and Q3 89%).  78% of 
families engaged with the service report an improvement in their families’ resilience. 

 
5.7 Young carers have continued their commitment this year in participating in various 

awareness raising activities which has helped to promote them on a local, regional 
and National platform.  Merthyr Young carers have also had the opportunity to have 
their voices heard through participation in various consultations and meetings that 
are relevant to them. 

 

 9 young carers participated in a focus group with Ludicology looking at ‘play’ this 
was commissioned by MTCBC. 

 2 young carers participated in a meeting with the Education Minister 
Kirsty Williams to help inform her decision on the future of exams. 

 4 young carers who participated in the ‘Here I Am’ Campaign.  This campaign 
has now been presented to schools across Wales, lesson plans and resources 
are now being used to tackle stereotypes, looking at identity and celebrating 
differences. 

 Barnardo’s Kidsmas Event.  Merthyr Young Carers Choir were showcased at this 
year’s Barnardo’s Kidsmas event.  The event was streamed across the whole of 
the UK.  Moreover, Barnardo’s used the Merthyr Young Carers Choir and 
interview to stream on Christmas day, this was independent of the Kidsmas 
event.  

 Community Ambassadors - 4 young carers represented their peers at the 
quarterly event held on Zoom.  They met with Children’s Rights Ambassadors 
from Caerphilly, Swansea, The Vale of Glamorgan and Carmarthen.  The group 
spoke about their role as carers and the support they give. 

 
5.8 The Young Carers Service has continued to expand its partnership working to 

ensure that our young carers and their families are safe, stimulated and supported. 
Some of this year’s partnership work has included: 

 

Page 17



 Providing our young carers who did not have the laptop/computer facilities with 
laptops, including sim cards so they have Wifi.  This was through a programme 
supported by the Welsh Government.  

 Local Councillors - Providing educational wellbeing packs and Christmas packs 
for all Barnardo’s young carers across the County Borough of Merthyr Tydfil. 

 Glam Youth Choir providing tutoring and support to Merthyr Young Carers Choir. 

 ArtisCommunity - Support with funding for a music tutor.  Providing opportunities 
and events to showcase Young Carers choir.  Providing opportunities for Young 
Carers to attend on-line arts sessions. 

 Dowlais Community Centre (Stephens and George Charity) - Joint project 
enabling Young Carers to explore their creative skills resulting in production of a 
children’s book to raise awareness of caring. 

 Mike Church (author) Osian (illustrator) - Bookish creative writing project. 

 Martin Daws Poet Laureate, Owen Mcclue MC - Support with music and poetry 
sessions. 

 Community Music Wales - Music/poetry tutors to support Alaw sessions. 

 3G’s Development Trust - Donations of wellbeing art and craft packs for young 
carers’ families across Gurnos, Penydarren and Dowlais Wards. 

 MTHA/Fit and Fed - Funding for Nutrition for Life Recipe Books and funding to 
purchase Tesco vouchers. 

 Cwm Taf Morgannwg - Working towards young carers’ ID card scheme. 
 
5.9 The Young Carers Service has continued to work closely with the Early Help Hub 

and Education to ensure the range of support available to young carers is utilised.  
 

5.10 In December 2019 Young Carers’ Scrutiny Report we shared a clear vision for where 
we wanted to be.  The pandemic has created a clear barrier to us achieving the 
developments we had aimed for in 2020/21.  We have needed to focus delivery time 
on ‘safety first’ models of support.  Naturally, the required shift from group delivery to 
one-to-one work whilst necessary, has placed additional demands on the service. 
 

5.11 Merthyr Tydfil Young Carers’ Service want to ensure that young carers are provided 
with the right support at the right time to maximise the likelihood of young carers 
meeting their potential. 

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 Our vision as a Local Authority for how we support carers is overarching for both 

adult and young carers.  We are committed to work with our Local Authority carers in 
a way that:  

 

 Continues to ensure that we co-produce with carers to ensure their voices are 
heard. 

 Ensures that how we structure and deliver our services are led through 
evaluation work with carers. 

 Reduces the level of social isolation that many of our carers face. 

 We want to have arrangements in place to support unpaid carers in their role. 

 We want to increase our awareness and identification of all carers to ensure that 
they are provided with the right support at the same time. 

Page 18



 

 We want to ensure our carers receive the right support at the right time and that 
their personal outcomes as carers are considered in their own right. 

 Implement young carer cards for young carers within the Local Authority. 
 
6.2 The areas identified in the Cwm Taf strategy are: 
 

 Aim 1: Identifying Carers of all ages and recognising their contributions. 
 

 Aim 2:  Providing up to date, relevant and timely information, advice & assistance 
to Carers of all ages. 

 

 Aim 3:  Providing support, services & training to meet the needs of Carers of all 
ages. 
 

 Aim 4:  Giving Carers of all ages a voice, with more choice & control over their 
lives. 

 

 Aim 5:  Working together to make the most of our resources for the benefit of 
Carers of all ages. 

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 To support where we want to be we will continue to engage with carers. 
 
7.2 In support of this within Merthyr Tydfil we are undertaking the following: 

 

 Continual review and support developments in the services commissioned. 

 Implement a carers emergency ID card to help professionals identify that a 
person is a carer. 

 Increase the number of virtual groups for adult unpaid carers. 

 Identify more carers within the Local Authority and recognise their contributions.  

 Provide relevant up to date information for carers in a timely manner.  

 Produce a monthly newsletter to carers that will be available on our Merthyr Tydfil 
carers social media group and posted out to those who do not have access to 
social media.  

 Implement training and learning opportunities for carers to upskill themselves 
whilst in their caring role. 

 Relevant Council Officers and Barnardos staff will continue to work closely to 
maximise the opportunities for our young carers and support them to access 
wider services. 

 We will continue to advocate for our young carers to retain visibility of their needs 
and access to any additional resources as part of the Cwm Taf Morgannwg 
Carers Strategy. 

 We will continue to work alongside education to support the awareness of the 
support needs of young carers within education settings. 

 
 
 

Page 19



8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1 The work we are undertaking around carers links with the Living Well Wellbeing 

objective.  
 

This area of business and the Council’s offer under the Children’s Services Strategy 
Early Intervention and Prevention - Children and their families receive the right help 
at the right time to prevent escalation of need.  In line with our overall vision: 

 
Children and young people are safe and healthy; have the right help at the right time; 

are supported to live with their family or close to home; and, have stable and 
successful lives. 

 
 
 
 
LISA CURTIS JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES 
                CABINET MEMBER FOR 

SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Young Carers Scrutiny Report 
December 2019 

December 2019  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 

Page 20



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 
 
 
To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Social Services Recovery, Transformation and 

Improvement Plan Update 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 Scrutiny members have requested the Chief Officer of Social Services provide a 

position statement on the Social Services Recovery, Transformation and 
Improvement Plan along with any details of issues/barriers experienced and how 
these have been overcome.  The report is also to identify the key areas for 

development and improvement for 2021/22. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1  That the scrutiny committee discusses and comments on the issues set out in the 

report.  
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The last year has had a significant impact on Health and Social Care.  The 

Coronavirus (Covid-19) has had a devastating impact on many people’s lives.  The 
need to lockdown for periods of time, self-isolation and shielding have had a serious 
impact on well-being and quality of life in local communities.  

 
3.2 In the past year we have worked hard to ensure that the public still receive a service 

when required.  Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, along with partners from 
other public bodies, and third and independent sectors, have continued to provide 
targeted front-line responses to the constantly changing situation that the 
Coronavirus pandemic has presented.  We have worked within the guidance 

Date Written 26th February 2021 

Report Author Lisa Curtis-Jones 

Service Area Social Services 

Committee Date 16th March 2021 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



provided by Welsh Government and the Council has continued to deliver core 
services with a shared commitment to work in partnership.  Where required we have 
worked in different ways to meet emerging and existing needs.  

 
3.3 The virus did not alter Social Services duties to vulnerable children or adults.  

Safeguarding has remained a priority throughout the past year.  Managers and staff 
have worked closely together to ensure that we have discharged our duties to the 
public, whilst promoting both public and staff safety.  

 
3.4 Restrictions have been in place now for twelve months and services have had to 

adapt to these changes in guidance and legislation.  It is fair to say that the 
pandemic has put Social Care provision under strain in the past months.  We are 
also mindful of future additional pressures and demands once lockdown restrictions 
start to lift.  This is something we need to plan for now.   

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE 
 
4.1 It is safe to say that Safeguarding has always been a priority for Social Services.  It 

is imperative that we protect the most vulnerable Adults and Children in our 
community.  

 
4.2 Prior to the Pandemic in March 2020, Social Services was embarking on a journey of 

change and improvement.  The introduction of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act 
(Wales) 2014 had been embedded into the way we were working, ensuring that 
Social Care were being more inclusive with the people they serve and ensuring that 
we were improving outcomes for each individual we worked with.  

 
4.3 We had outlined improvement plans within the Corporate Plan, the Social Services 

Annual Report and within the Council’s Improvement Plan.  
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 This year has seen Social Services having to react to situations as they arise.  There 

are some areas of the Improvement Plan that we have been able to take forward, but 
others where there has been delay due to the Pandemic.  (I will outline the plan 
below). 

 
5.2 Regional working ceased for a significant period and recommenced prior to 

Christmas 2020, and there was significant delay in some of the transformation and 
regional work as a result of the Pandemic.  

 
5.3 Welsh Government supported Local Authorities with hardship funding, which has 

greatly assisted our care homes and allowed us to continue to offer a good service to 
all, with no financial penalty.  It is important to note that whilst it is positive that Local 
Authorities have been able to access support of this nature, there have been costs 
incurred within Social Services that cannot be recuperated via hardship funding. 

 
5.4 Numbers of staff having to isolate or testing positive for Covid-19 has reduced in 

recent weeks, although twice weekly testing is being introduced across the service to 
continue to offer safe care and support to people when they need it.  

Page 22



 
5.5 Referrals across Adult’s and Children’s Services have started to increase.  Adult 

Services are supporting individuals to be discharged from hospital in a timely manner 
with packages of support or being placed in a care home setting if required.  
Children’s Services has started to see pre-Pandemic levels of referrals being 
received, which are primarily complex child protection concerns.  As schools return 
full-time in the coming weeks we expect to see further increases, it is also 
reasonable to assume that increases in partner agencies delivering services via 
face-to-face means will influence an increase in referrals.  It is anticipated that due to 
the impact of restrictions on individual’s mental health and wellbeing, in conjunction 
with changes in preventative services delivery, that referral rates are likely to exceed 
pre-Covid-19 levels.  

 
5.6 Planning is now being focussed on recovery and how we deal with extra demand in 

Social Care in the future.  This will require a whole Council approach. 
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 We want to provide an excellent service to the public of Merthyr Tydfil. 
 
6.2 We wish to be resilient in future and ensure we are in a stable position financially to 

continue to provide the service that people need, when they need it. 
 
6.3 We wish to continue to improve our services and change and adapt when required. 

We are aware that prevention work continues to need to be addressed longer term in 
both Adult’s and Children’s Services. 

 
6.4 Partnership working is important, so we need to build on the positive partnership 

working that has taken place over the past 12 months.  
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 As we look to recover from the Pandemic then we need to address all aspects of the 

Recovery, Transformation and Improvement Plan.  We need to revisit timescales 
and ensure we get back on track addressing all areas of the Plan.  

 
7.2 There will also be specific projects to look at the rising demand of cases we expect in 

coming weeks.  Task and Finish groups are being set up to look at this corporately 
and with our partners to ensure we can meet the growing demand.  

 
7.3 We are recruiting an extra Social Worker into the Adult Mental Health Team to help 

with the rise in cases within this area. 
 
7.4 A new Principal Officer in Adult Services is being recruited to also assist in the 

capacity of this area.  The Pandemic has highlighted the need for extra resources in 
Adult Services. 

 
7.5 The Head of Children Services, in January 2021, has taken responsibility for 

Families First and is now looking to improve the area of preventative work, working 
closely with Education colleagues.  

Page 23



 

8.0 RECOVERY, TRANSFORMATION AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
 

8.1 The Social Services element of the RTI plan is focussed on improving resilience.  
This will be the focus of the areas for development and improvement in 2021/22.  It 
is broken down into three areas:    
– Recovery; 
– Resources and Service Improvement; and 
– Resilience and Sustainability. 

 

8.2 On reviewing the plan recently in light of the Pandemic and looking to make 
progress, I would like to highlight the following: 

 
Recovery 

 

 Business Continuity plans in place. 

 Report presented to Scrutiny in September 2020 detailing the changes in 
services and how contact and safeguarding would be maintained due to the 
Pandemic.  Good plans in place. 

 Plans developed during the first lockdown have ensured continuity of approach. 

 Strong Regional working around the Pandemic. 

 All service areas have been reviewed.  Some new/temporary working practices in 
place eg. Day Services. 

 Redeployment of staff where needed. 
 

Resources and Service Improvement 
 

 This area includes cultural change and service specific improvements.  All 
projects underway: eg. Advocacy, support for Carers, Extra Care Housing, 
services for people with Dementia, Foster Care recruitment, Children Looked 
After numbers and strategy, Care Leavers strategy, Transition.  

 Good cross directorate working where relevant. 

 Work is underway with corporate colleagues to ensure the culture in Social 
Services aligns to the corporate ways of working, eg. agile working practices, 
digital applications and systems. 

 
Resilience and sustainability 

 

 Approval to expand capacity in key areas: 
– Permanent appointment to Head of Children’s Services. 
– Recruitment underway for additional Principal Officer in Adult Services. 
– Additional capacity in adult safeguarding (MASH). 
– Increase in resources related to legislative changes to Additional Learning 

needs (jointly with the Learning Directorate).  
– Families First function moved into the Social Services Directorate (from the 

Learning Directorate) which ensures preventative and statutory services work 
together. 

 Business Cases in development to explore: 
– Capacity in Mental Health Services (extra social worker). 

Page 24



– Possible change to the model of IRO contracted provision. 
– Possible remodelling of Children’s residential provision. 

 Regular meetings established with the Third Sector to improve the range of 
community-based support available. 

 Regional groups were re-established following the first lockdown.  However, 
progress has been hampered in this area as Regional work is concentrated on 
managing priorities relating to the Pandemic, eg. mass testing, vaccinations, 
service procedures etc. 

 We have recruited an additional Senior Social Work Practitioner to strengthen the 
capacity for safeguarding at the front door. 

 
8.3 In relation to resilience in Social Services, overarching priorities will be to manage 

demand, performance and budget.  We will continue to monitor and review Children 

Looked After figures as this has had a huge impact on the budget previously.  We will 

also monitor and review the high demands on Adult Services eg. discharges from 

hospital and an increase in Learning Disability Placements breaking down.  

 

8.4 Covid-19 will be a big part of our day-to-day work for some time and we need to 

continue being mindful of this as we move forward.  

 

9.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 
9.1 This report specifically links to the Living Well objective within the Council’s 

Corporate Wellbeing Plan: People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  

 
9.2 Through the continued provision of services through the Pandemic we will also be 

able to demonstrate the team’s contribution to support progress against other 
wellbeing objectives set down by the Council in focus in the Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan.  That is: 

 

 Best Start in Life – children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  

 
 
 
 
LISA CURTIS JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES 
                CABINET MEMBER FOR 

SOCIAL SERVICES 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Forward Work Programme 2020/21  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached Forward Work Programme and approves, 
revises or amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in 
planning for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached forward work programme identifies the topics and issues under 
consideration by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional 
subjects to be identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 8th March 2021 

Report Author Scrutiny Section  

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 16th March 2021 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 

Page 28



matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives? 

b. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s corporate 
priorities/ objectives? 

c. Is this item/ topic relating to service performance concerns? 
d. Is this item/ topic of significant public interest? 
e. Does the item/ topic have any budgetary implications? 
f. Is this an item/ topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
g. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
 

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department; 

 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 
 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue; 
d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation/ review; 
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 
 

 

Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

Page 29



a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 
c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy/ strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives/ other plan/ other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role/ achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas/ 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate/ Cabinet 
Member/ External Partner etc. prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending to ensure that they have the information/ 
answer ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format/ venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Due to the outbreak of the Covid-19 global pandemic, all scrutiny committees 
are to be held via Microsoft Teams at least for the time-being. This decision 
has been taken to ensure the safety of our members, officers and all others in 
attendance. Currently, there is no clear indication of when hybrid meetings will 
be appropriate; and this will be reviewed in line with any updates and advice 
from U.K. and Welsh Government. 

 
Even under normal circumstances, meetings do not have to be held in a 
formal committee room environment. You may wish to hold occasional 
meetings in community location settings e.g. community centres, sports 
facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some people find the formal setting 
intimidating. Site visits for example may be more appropriate to see first-hand 
what the committee is investigating/ obtaining information on e.g. waste sites, 
regeneration projects etc. 
 
 

Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

Page 30



 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/ carers and/ or the general public (public 
calls for evidence) 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 
 
 

  

APPENDIX I 

Page 32



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 
and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Committee 
Date  

Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  Cross Cutting 
Strategies and 

Plans 

15th 
September 

2020 

Forward Work 

Programme 

2020/2021 

 

Cllr Bill Smith (Chair) and 

Scrutiny Committee 

Members 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The draft Forward Work Programme is developed at 

the beginning of the municipal year by the Members of the Social Services 

Scrutiny Committee, which includes the areas the members wish to focus on 

throughout the year. However, it is a fluid document and it may change due 

to the needs of the Social Services Scrutiny Committee. Therefore, the 

committee is to consider and approve the Forward Work Programme as it 

stands for Social Services (2020/2021). 

Recovery, 

Transformation & 

Improvement Plan 

(Governance) 

Coronavirus 
Pandemic - 
Update on 
Recovery and 
Activity 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer of Social Services) / 
Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / Taryn 
Hudd (Head of Children’s 
Services) / Councillor Chris 
Davies (Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The committee has requested a report to give an 
update on how Social Services are responding to the demands and 
challenges due to the Coronavirus pandemic. This report should also outline 
the services transition to recovery and lessons learned going forward. 

Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement Plan 

6th 
October 

2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Complaints and 
Compliments 
(2018/19)  
 
 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer) / Gaynor Lewis 
(Complaints Manager) / 
Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Local Authorities are required to the Social Services 
Complaints Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 and the Representations 
Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 to produce an Annual Report about the 
operation of their Social Services Complaints, Representations and 
Compliments Policy and Procedures.  
The complaints reports are completed retrospectively after the complaints 
have been resolved; this can take up to 6-8 months after the financial year. 
Therefore, a mid-year report (2017/18) was presented to Scrutiny in 
September 2019. The committee has now requested an end of year report 
(2018/19) for consideration and challenge. The report should include any 
details of issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome. 
The report is also to identify key areas for development and improvement 
for 2019/20. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

Day Services 
 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adults Services) / 
Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Summary report providing a position statement on 
the performance within 20/21, along with any details of issues/barriers 
experienced and how these have been overcome. The report is also to 
consider key areas for development and improvement for 2020/21 within 
Merthyr Tydfil. Specific focus to be confirmed. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

P
age 33



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 
and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s 
expectations are available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 

 

17th 
November 

2020 

Budget Position 
updates 
 
 
 

Lisa Curtis Jones (Chief 
Officer of Social Services) 
/ Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny providing an 
update on Social Services budget and areas of likely overspend and the 
measures that have been put in place to help reduce any overspend within 
the department.  This report should also give any details of issues/barriers 
experienced and how these have been overcome. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 

Transition of 
Young People 
Leaving Care 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer of Social Services) 
/ Taryn Hudd (Head of 
Children’s Services) / 
Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Summary report providing a position statement on 
the performance within 20/21, along with any details of issues/barriers 
experienced and how these have been overcome. The report is also to 
consider key areas for development and improvement for 2020/21 within 
Merthyr Tydfil. Specific focus to be confirmed. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s 
expectations are available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 

 

5th January 
2021 

 
Meeting 
cancelled 

due to 
mass 

testing 

Adult Services 
Strategies 
(2020/21)  
 
 
 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / Taryn 
Hudd (Head of Children’s 
Services) / Councillor Chris 
Davies (Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Adult Services will provide a position 
statement on strategies applicable to Adult Social Services.  The report is 
also to identify key areas for development and improvement for Q4 
(2020/21) and 2021/22. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

Children Services 
Strategies 
(2020/21)  
 

Taryn Hudd (Head of 
Children’s Services) / 
Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children’s Services will provide a 
position statement on strategies applicable to Children’s Social Services.  The 
report is also to identify key areas for development and improvement for Q4 
(2020/21) and 2021/22. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s 
expectations are available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 

 

2nd 
February 

2021 

Adult Services 
Strategies 
(2020/21)  
 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / Taryn 
Hudd (Head of Children’s 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Adult Services will provide a position 
statement on strategies applicable to Adult Social Services.  The report is 
also to identify key areas for development and improvement for Q4 
(2020/21) and 2021/22. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

P
age 34



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 
and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Deferred from 5th 
January 2021 
 
 
 

Services) / Councillor Chris 
Davies (Portfolio Member) 

Children Services 
Strategies 
(2020/21)  
 
Deferred from 5th 
January 2021 
 

Taryn Hudd (Head of 
Children’s Services) / 
Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children’s Services will provide a position 
statement on strategies applicable to Children’s Social Services.  The report is 
also to identify key areas for development and improvement for Q4 
(2020/21) and 2021/22. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

Review of 
Whistleblowing 
and Corporate 
Safeguarding 
 
Referred by Audit 
Committee 
 

Jon Eyre (Safeguarding 
Manager) / Fran Donnelly 
(Head of Human 
Resources) / Lisa Curtis-
Jones (Chief Officer of 
Social Services) 
 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Referred to Scrutiny by Audit Committee for review 
and challenge. Note and debate the progress made against the Corporate 
Safeguarding Action Plan. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s 
expectations are available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 

 

16th March 
2021 

Adults and Young 
Careers 
 
 
 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / Taryn 
Hudd (Head of Children’s 
Services) / Councillor Chris 
Davies (Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny with on the 
Carers Strategy and the impact it is having on the Adults and Young Carers.  
Details should also be provided on any issues/barriers experienced and how 
these have been overcome or how you plan to overcome them. The report is 
also to consider key areas for development and improvement for 2020/21 
within Merthyr Tydfil. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

Safeguarding 
Board Annual 
Report (and 
current update) 
 

Nicholas Kingham (RCT) / 
Jon Eyre (Safeguarding 
Manager) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Safeguarding is a clear priority for the Council. As a 
Local Authority we have a duty to safeguard children and adults at risk as set 
out by the Social Services and Well-Being Act (SSWBA). Therefore, the 
committee has requested a summary of the 2019/20 Safeguarding Board 
Annual Regional Plan, which is to also identify the key areas of improvement 
going forward both regionally and in Merthyr Tydfil. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

P
age 35



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 
and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Deferred from 2nd 
February 2020 
 

The cover report should include any trend/current data specific Merthyr 
Tydfil and details of issues/barriers experienced and how these have been 
overcome. The report is also to identify key areas for development and 
improvement for 2020/21. 

Social Services 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan Update 
 
 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer of Social Services) 
/ Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / Taryn 
Hudd (Head of Children’s 
Services) / Councillor Chris 
Davies (Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: The social care provision has been under strain 
throughout the pandemic and there are likely to be additional pressures 
from new caseloads being reported following a release from lockdown and 
over the winter months placing further challenges on the resilience of the 
services.  Therefore, the members have requested the Chief Officer of Social 
Services to provide a position statement on the Social Services Recovery, 
Transformation, and Improvement Plan along with any details of 
issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome. The report 
is also to identify the key areas for development and improvement for 
2021/22. 

Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement Plan 
 
Focus on the 
Future 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s 
expectations are available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 

 

7th April 
2021 

Community 
Occupational 
Therapy (COT) 
and Disabled 
Facilities Grant 
(DFG) 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer of Social Services / 
RCT 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Summary report providing a position statement on 
the performance within 20/21, along with any details of issues/barriers 
experienced and how these have been overcome. The report is also to 
consider key areas for development and improvement for 2020/21 within 
Merthyr Tydfil. Specific focus to be confirmed. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

Edge of Care 
(Strategy Update) 
 
 

Taryn Hudd (Head of 
Children’s Services) / 
Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Summary report providing a position statement on 
the performance within 20/21, along with any details of issues/barriers 
experienced and how these have been overcome. The report is also to 
consider key areas for development and improvement for 2020/21 within 
Merthyr Tydfil. 

Focus on the 
Future  
 
SSWBA 

Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan - Adult 
Advocacy 
 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / 
Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 
2014 defines advocacy services as: “services which provide assistance (by 
way of representation or otherwise) to persons for purposes relating to their 
care and support”. The act refers to services being provided by independent 
professional advocates in relation to adults’ and children’s care and support. 
Adult Advocacy has been identified as an area for improvement in the Social 

Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement Plan 
 
Focus on the 
Future 

P
age 36



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 
and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Additional Topics for Consideration  

2020/21 Self-Evaluation 
(3 questions) 
Dates of completion of 
2020/21 SER questions 
are yet to be confirmed. 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer of Social Services) / 
Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / Taryn 
Hudd (Head of Children’s 
Services) / Councillor Chris 
Davies (Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-
evaluation process supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on 
what they achieved and identify and set priorities for improvement.  The 
Committee will receive the service’s response to the first of the key 
questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to scrutinise 
the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant 
supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   

Focus on the Future 

 
 
 

   

 

Deferred from 2nd 
February 2021 
 
 

Services Recovery, Transformation, and Improvement Plan, therefore, the 
members request an update report to be presented on the development of 
advocacy services for adults. The report should also provide any details of 
issues / barriers experienced and how these have been overcome and 
priorities going forward, and any analysis of the engagement undertaken 
and a draft of the co-produced strategy (if possible). 

 
SSWBA 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s 
expectations are available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 

 

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board Annual Report 2019/20
	4 Adult Services and Children’s Services Carers Strategy
	5 Social Services Recovery, Transformation and Improvement Plan Update
	6 Forward Work Programme 2020/21
	Appendix 1


